
 
 

Miami-Dade County 

Minutes  
Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) 

Stephen P. Clark Center (SPCC) 
111 N.W. 1st Street, Miami, Florida 33128 

18th Floor, Conference Room 18-4 

 Date:    Wednesday, June 26, 2013       

 Time:  1:30– 4:00 p.m. est. 

 Call to Order Time:     1:49 p.m. est. 

 Meeting Adjourned:    3:55 p.m. est. 

I.  
 

Opening and Attendance: Attendance recorded. Call to Order. Copies of documents were distributed  

 District 1  
Commissioner Jordan  

Damian Gregory… 
1st Vice Chair  Present 

 District 2  
Commissioner Monestime 

Jackson David  
Housing Committee Chair Present 

 District 3  
Commissioner Edmonson  

Jose Granda  
Access Committee Chair Present 

 District 4  
Commissioner Heyman 

Earl Oaks  
Employment Committee Chair 

Present via conference 
phone 

 District 5  
Commissioner Barreiro  

Jose (Ernie) Martinez  
CODI Chairman Present  

 District 6  
Commissioner Sosa 

Pedro Rodriguez 
Housing Committee Co-Chair Excused Absence  

 District 7  
Commissioner Suarez  

Harry Horgan  
Outreach/Education Chair Present  

 District 8  
Commissioner Bell 

Jesus Garcia  
CODI Secretary & Transportation Committee Chair Present 

 District 9  
Commissioner Moss 

Ronald Fulton 
2nd Vice Chair Unexcused Absence  

 District 10  
Commissioner Souto  

Vacant seat --- 

 District 11  
Commissioner Zapata 

Denise Valkema Unexcused Absence  

 District 12  
Commissioner Diaz 

Marilyn Larrieu   
Housing Committee Co-Chair Excused Absence  

  District 13  
Commission Bovo 

Alan Rigerman Present 

 
Miami-Dade County Staff 
Present 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dianne Steinberg      
ISD, Administrative & Business Services Division 
Recording Secretary 
 

Heidi Johnson-Wright 
ISD, ADA Coordinator 
1 

Marcos Ortega 
Transit, ADA Coordinator 
 

Lucy Binhack, ADA Coordinator 
(PROS) 
Fernando Marquez, Architect, Capital Programs, (PROS) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Summary Minutes of Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) Meeting 
June 26, 2013      
Page 2 of 6 

 
 

II.  
 

Approval of  Agenda 
 
 

CODI Chairman Ernie Martinez asked for a motion to approve the June 26, 2013 
agenda. Jesus Garcia made the motion to approve, which was seconded by Alan 
Rigerman.  Agenda unanimously approved.    
 

III.  

 
 

Approval of 
CODI Minutes 
 

CODI Chairman Ernie Martinez asked for a motion to approve the May 22, 
2013 minutes. Jesus Garcia made the motion to approve, which was seconded 
by Alan Rigerman.  Minutes unanimously approved.       
 

 

IV.  Opening Comments 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HAULOVER BEACH PROJECT 
 

Jose Granda raised the issue of access to the naturist beach. 
 
Fernando Marquez, Architect, Capital Programs, from Parks, Recreation and 
Open Spaces (PROS) provided an update to CODI on the project to enhance 
access at the beach. Re-striping of parking at the south end of the beach has 
added eight accessible parking spaces there plus two accessible spaces at the 
existing rest rooms.  The southern end of Haulover now has 21 accessible 
spaces.  
 
Mr. Marquez said that the project to add accessible parking spaces by the 
lifeguard building is progressing. Additionally, PROS has completed a new 
parking lot with six new accessible spaces, in addition to the nine parking 
spaces already located there. Once the new lifeguard building is complete, 
PROS will demolish the old building. PROS will be refurbishing and restriping 
the existing parking lot with a total of 15 accessible parking spaces. This should 
be completed within the next three months. Additionally, PROS is moving 
forward with creating access through the north tunnel. The project has been 
reviewed and approved by the building department and is currently being 
reviewed by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA). Once the plans are approved, they will procure a contractor. The current 
estimated completion date for the project is March 2014.      
 
Mr. Marquez added that PROS has an additional project to restripe 13 existing 
parking spaces and add four new accessible parking spaces throughout the 
facility. This project is currently out to bid.  Once competed, there will be 116 
accessible parking spaces throughout Haulover Park out of a total of 2,700 
parking spaces. Heidi Johnson Wright, ISD, ADA Coordinator stated that the 
number of spaces is compliant with federal and state law. Mr. Marquez added 
this is twice the amount of accessible parking spaces required.  
 
ADA COMPLIANCE IN PUBLICATIONS  
 

CODI First Vice Chair, Damian Gregory inquired about the relationship PROS 
has with organizations that use the PROS name and claim ADA compliance.  
Lucy Binhack, ADA Coordinator, PROS stated that there are many community 
based organizations that utilize PROS facilities. In many instances, the 
department provides the facility and the organization provides the activities 
and functions at that facility. Ms. Binhack clarified that most of Haulover is 
ADA compliant with the exception of one area. Additionally, the PROS website 
does not state that the entire park is ADA compliant but makes reference to 
beach wheelchairs and Moby mats, etc.   Unsure of whether PROS has to 
approve all printed/published material by outside organizations under the 
PROS name, Ms. Binhack agreed to research this and report back to CODI.  
 
Additionally, PROS is conducting a survey for the Disability Community in order 



Summary Minutes of Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) Meeting 
June 26, 2013      
Page 3 of 6 

 
to better determine their needs.  PROS have received surveys back and 
continue to reach out to the Disability Community.  
CITIZENS’ INDEPENDENT TRANSPORTATION TRUST (CITT) 
 

Rosa Laguna addressed CODI regarding a CITT meeting she recently attended. 
The issue of use of the Metrorail by People with Disabilities was addressed. 
She stated that the CITT Board was complaining that individuals utilizing 
wheelchairs take up space on the Metrorail trains. Ms. Laguna raised concerns 
that members of the Board had limited knowledge of how people in 
wheelchairs traveling on the Metrorail system transfer from wheelchairs to 
other spaces. They expected the wheelchairs to be stowed away, which is 
impossible to accomplish, as these types of wheelchairs do not fit properly in 
standard spaces.  
 
Mr. Gregory suggested CODI regularly attend the CITT meetings.  Ms.  Laguna 
expressed concern about the lack of insight of the CITT regarding the disabled 
community. She added that she will be applying for CITT membership.  
 
Motion: Damian Gregory made a motion that a member of CODI attends the 
CITT meetings beginning next month on a rotating basis. Motion was seconded 
by Alan Rigerman. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 

V.  
 
Old /New Business 

3 minutes each speaker (Advance Notice Preferred) 
No public comments at this time 

 
 

VI.  

 

Information  
Items 

 

OUTREACH COMMITTEE,  HARRY HORGAN - ADA CELEBRATION 2013 
 

Harry Horgan discussed the ADA Celebration of the 23rd Anniversary of the 
signing of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The event will be co-
hosted by CODI and the Office of the Miami-Dade County Mayor Carlos 
Gimenez at the Shake- a-Leg Facility on July 26th 2013.  The presentation will 
begin at 11:00 a.m. with key note speakers to follow.  
 
Chairman Martinez stated that the Mayor’s Office will be inviting politicians at 
the local, state and national level including ADA coordinators from many 
municipalities and the community at large.  He added that the CODI Outreach 
Committee has formed an alliance with Miami-Dade College, which provided 
the invitations. They will be utilizing social media as well. Mr. Horgan said 
there will be 400 children disabled and non-disabled on-site at Shake-a-Leg 
summer camp. One of the themes for the celebration will recognize access for 
children, our future leaders. He added that Miami with its geographic location 
and climate is very favorable to outdoor activities.  Additionally, this 
celebration will promote CODI as a resource to the Disability Community.  Jose 
Granda suggested that CODI invite Dan Marino as he has a child that is autistic 
and it would be a great opportunity for Mr. Marino and the community.  
 
Heidi Johnson-Wright advised that the universal access statement should be 
included on all announcements sent out for this event. A discussion ensued 
regarding the RSVP and special accommodation contact information for the 
event.   
Ms. Johnson-Wright said that Miami-Dade County will provide sign language 
interpreters for the event. Jose Granda suggested that due to the size of the 
event, four interpreters may be needed.   
 



Summary Minutes of Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) Meeting 
June 26, 2013      
Page 4 of 6 

 
  ACCESS COMMITTEE,  JOSE GRANDA 

 
Mr. Granda said that the last Access Committee Meeting was very productive. 
There was a meaningful discussion on police issues with MDPD, ADA 
Coordinator Leila Zinati. However, the Miami-Dade County Corrections and 
Rehabilitation Department (MDCR) staff did not attend the meeting. 
    
HURRICANE PREPAREDNESS 
Mr. Granda raised concerns regarding the ASL video of the Hurricane 
Preparedness Manual on the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) 
website. The video was posted two years ago and needs to be updated.  He 
requested that the Ms. Heidi Johnson-Wright follow up with the OEM.  
Additionally, Mr. Granda stated that the language in the hurricane guide is too 
complex for some individuals in the deaf community to comprehend.  
 
Heidi Johnson Wright advised that Loubert Alexis, OEM’s ADA Coordinator, 
attended an CODI Access Committee meeting a few months ago and stated 
that, while the current video was competed in 2011, the content of OEM’s 
hurricane guide has not changed. Mr. Alexis stated that if CODI requests that 
additional information be included in the video, Ken Marquardt of MDC and 
the AOA could assist in producing it. Ms. Johnson-Wright reviewed the video 
and compared it with the current hurricane guide and confirmed that the 
content is identical.  OEM does not currently have funding to produce an 
entirely new video.   
 
Chairman Martinez suggested that CODI begin reviewing hurricane 
preparedness at the end of each hurricane season in order to be better 
prepared for the next hurricane season. Ms. Johnson-Wright suggested Mr. 
Alexis attend the CODI meeting in January 2014 sometime ahead of hurricane 
season to address the Board on Hurricane Preparedness for the Disability 
Community.  
 

   

MARLINS PARK: CLAUDE DELORME, EXECUTIVE VP, FLORIDA MARLINS   
 
David Enriquez addressed CODI regarding the STS pick-up/drop-off point at 
Marlins Park. The point is currently located at NW 16th Ave. and NW 6th Street. 
He said that staff assists STS riders who need help getting to and from their 
seats. Mr. Enriquez added that the Marlins organization wants to effectively 
serve the Disability Community.  The Marlins staff will attend CODI meetings a 
few times each year and address any issues that may have arisen. 
 
Jesus Garcia inquired about auxiliary aids for blind individuals who attend 
games at Marlins Park. Mr. Enriquez said that there are two audio systems. 
Assistive listening devices are available from Guest Services on the Promenade 
and Vista levels. Mr. Garcia inquired about the low watt transmission of the 
FM radio commentary on the inside of the stadium used so that someone with 
a visual impairment could bring in a portable radio and listen to the broadcast. 
Mr. Garcia said guests that attended games as recently as May 2013 reported 
that the audio system was not working.  Mr. Enriquez said there are three 
stations available for guests to listen to the broadcast of the game. One station 
is in English and one is in Spanish – the AM 790 Spanish Flagship station and 
FM 104.3 station. He advised that they will test all three stations the next day.    
 



Summary Minutes of Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) Meeting 
June 26, 2013      
Page 5 of 6 

 
Mr. Delorme explained that the FM station is needed because most of the 
transmitters will not broadcast well in this type of building because of the 
amount of concrete. Utilizing an Active Listening Device, an individual can hear 
any feature on the scoreboard and the PA system and the quality of the 
reception is very good.  Jesus Garcia added that broadcasts are accessible 
through the MLB IPhone app but it quickly drains the cell phone’s battery.    
 
Mr. Delorme advised that guests can charge cellphones, computers and other 
electronic devices in multiple locations throughout the ballpark. For guests 
that need to make phone calls, there is a video phone located behind home 
plate on the Vista Level. It’s a Sorenson VRI kiosk, which is an enclosed area 
and is on the upper deck. He explained that if someone located on the 
Promenade needs to use it, they can access via the elevator behind home 
plate.  
 
Jose Granda said the park should have at least two video phones: one on the 
main floor and one on an upper deck. The ballpark does have a TTY device at 
the field level. However, a TTY is designed to assist hearing impaired persons, 
while a video phone is designed for conversation between a deaf individual 
and another deaf individual.  
       
Heidi Johnson-Wright encouraged CODI to peruse the Marlins Park Disability 
Service Guide online. 
 
Damian Gregory inquired about the job opportunities for the Disability 
Community at the Marlins Park Stadium. Christina Corpion, Guest Services 
Manager, said she manages a staff of 70 and several staff members have 
disabilities. Marlins staff work in areas that include guest services, box office, 
retail and concierge areas. Additionally, people with disabilities work in other 
areas of the ballpark as well.  When the Marlins Organization holds job fairs, 
they hire close to 1,000 people a year for the concession areas. Most staff is 
hired between November and February each year.  
 
Jose Granda suggested that People with Disabilities be given the opportunity 
to sing the National Anthem before a game at the Stadium. He added that 
there should be an interpreter for the song.  Mr. Enriquez agreed to submit 
this suggestion to the appropriate Marlins staff for review. 
 
A discussion ensued with CODI acknowledging ADA compliance at the Marlins 
Stadium and the organization’s involvement in the community. Mr. Enriquez 
extended an invitation to CODI to hold a meeting at the park.  Ms. Corpion 
suggested the area next to the bullpen zone. 
 

 

VII.  

 

 

Action Items 
 

ACCESSIBLE COMMUNICATION FORMATS 
 
Chairman Martinez stared that when Miami-Dade County staff are sharing 
information with the Disability Community, it often sends documents that are 
not in inaccessible format. Jesus Garcia cited the example of Procurement 
Management Services sending PDF format scanned documents to the STS RFP 
committee members. Instead of sending a scanned document, County staff 
should send information via email in the form of MS Word documents, text 
documents, or provide it in Braille. He raised the concern that failure to 
provide documents in accessible format could make the County vulnerable to 



Summary Minutes of Commission on Disability Issues (CODI) Meeting 
June 26, 2013      
Page 6 of 6 

 

 

 
 

 

lawsuits.  
 
Chairman Martinez proposed that each ADA Coordinator throughout the 
County have a professional version of ADOBE ACROBAT to convert documents 
into accessible format.  He said he utilizes a speech recognition text reader for 
lengthy reading on his computer and IPAD. He can use a PDF if it is converted 
into an OCR. He stated this issue will be taken up in the Access Committee. 
 
Motion: That Miami-Dade County, ADA Coordinators are to be given specific 
instructions as to how to properly send out accessible materials. This is to be a 
directive from the Board of County Commissioners. The motion was seconded 
by Damian Gregory. Motion passed unanimously.  
 

 Adjournment Meeting ended 3:55 p.m. est. 
 

 Next meeting July 24, 2013 
 


